
08182014 

  
 
 

HAYWOOD COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
 

REGULAR MEETING – August 18, 2014 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
Chairman Mark S. Swanger convened the regular meeting of the Haywood County Board of 
Commissioners at 5:30 p.m. in the Historic Courtroom at the Haywood County Historic 
Courthouse, Waynesville, North Carolina, with Chairman Mark S. Swanger, Vice-Chairman 
J.W. “Kirk” Kirkpatrick III, Commissioners L. Kevin Ensley, Michael T. Sorrells and Bill L. 
Upton present.  Staff members present were County Manager Ira Dove, County Attorney 
Leon M. “Chip” Killian, III, Finance Director Julie Davis, Public Information Officer David 
Teague, and Executive Assistant/Deputy Clerk Candace Way. 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
Chairman Swanger led the Pledge of Allegiance.  
 
INVOCATION 
Vice-Chairman Kirkpatrick offered the invocation. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT SESSION 
Chairman Swanger opened the public comment session. Comments are generally limited to 
three minutes per individual, unless the speaker is representing a group for which the 
comment period may be extended to five minutes. 
 
Eddie Cabe addressed the board, expressing his concern over the neighborhood 
delineation tax rate.  He requested that the board look at the tax rates and the differences of 
some in the same neighborhood.  He also requested that the public records be put back on 
line.   
 
Ellen Pitt approached the board, extending an invitation to attend a debate of the two 
candidates for District Attorney for the 30th Prosecutorial District.  This will be on Sunday, 
September 28th from 2:00 p.m. until 4:00 p.m. at the Colonial Theater in Canton.  She noted 
that there will a reception to follow hosted by Mothers against Drunk Driving and Drugs in 
our Midst.  She stressed the importance of electing the right official for this important 
position.   
 
Denny King addressed the Board, stating that the court of appeals issue with the tax office 
has not been settled.  He disputed the article in the Mountaineer covering the issue, and 
expressed his opinion on the views of the County and the newspaper concerning this 
matter. 
 
 
 
 
 



08182014 

 
CONSTITUENT CONCERNS 
Commissioner Ensley noted that the Haywood County Fair begins this Wednesday, August 
20th and runs through Sunday August 24th and encouraged the public to attend. 
He also commented that the past Chaplain to the Board, Paul Carden, passed away 
recently, noting that he was a dedicated and faithful pastor.   
 
Commissioner Sorrells stated that the anniversary celebration at the Crabtree Baptist 
Church this past Sunday was a great event further demonstrating what people and families 
do for our communities.   
 
Chairman Swanger noted that it was very interesting looking at the pictures dating back to 
1814. 
 
ADMINISTRATIVE/AGENCY REPORTS 
Smoky Mountain Center Fiscal Monitoring report 
Chairman Swanger recognized Finance Director, Julie Davis.  Ms. Davis presented the 
report to the Board, stating that the report from June 30th was the end of their fiscal year.  
She noted that it has not been audited and is subject to possible change.  She stated that 
the revenues were $306,153,441, expenditures $281,394,284 with a net increase in the 
cash balance of $24,759,157. 
                 
 DISCUSSION / ADJUSTMENT TO AGENDA 
There were no discussions/adjustments to the agenda 
 
CONSENT AGENDA 
Vice-Chairman Kirkpatrick made a motion to approve the consent agenda as presented.     
Commissioner Upton seconded, the motion carried unanimously. 

1. Approval of August 4, 2014 regular meeting minutes. 
2. Approval of the Order of Collection for 2014 – David Francis, Tax Administrator. 

Mr. Francis first responded to the public comment by Mr. Cabe, noting that the 
neighborhood delineation information on the website had been reviewed for usage, 
and at that time there was very little.  He stated that the office had to make room for 
the 2012 FEMA flood maps.  He stated that the information is archived and available 
upon request.   
 
Vice-Chairman Kirkpatrick noted that the valuation of property is based as close to 
fair market value as possible.  He said that factors build up to determine what the 
fair market value is and then everyone is taxed at the same rate with the exception 
of the different rates in the fire districts. 
 
Mr. Francis concurred noting that when you add the schedule of values and put the 
numbers in there, sometimes the sale prices are higher and a market factor has to 
be created to get it up to 100%. 
 
Commissioner Sorrells remarked that location can determine the value of the 
property. 
 



08182014 

Chairman Swanger stated that it is a mass appraisal and the state maintains sales 
figures.  He noted that the average home is selling for 2% more than what it is 
appraised for. 
 
Mr. Francis stated that the re-valuation captures what one re-valuation is until the 
next.  He stated that the neighborhood delineation puts a smaller view rather than a 
larger view and his office continues to work on these.   
 
Commissioner Upton noted that the tax rate can work for you or work against you. 
 
Mr. Francis then explained the Order of Collections for the 2014 tax year.  He stated 
that this gives the tax collector the ability to file tax judgments, levy on sale of any 
real or personal property, and do attachments and garnishments. 
 

              
 
 
 
 



08182014 

      3.  Approval of July 2014 refunds, releases, amendments and discoveries – David 
           Francis, Tax Administrator 
           Mr. Francis had nothing unusual to report and there were no questions.    
     
      4.  Budget Amendment – Julie Davis, Finance Director 
           Capital Project Fund – Public Schools ADM/Lottery projects - $13,000 

Ms. Davis explained that this is lottery funding for the Jonathan Valley  
Elementary School new shingle roof design.  She said that the Department  
of Public Instruction has approved the architecture fees for this amount. 
 

                
                        

 NEW BUSINESS 
Request approval of Consolidated Waste Services hauling contract 
Chairman Swanger recognized County Manager, Ira Dove.  Mr. Dove explained that the first 
amended and restated contract is online and has been made available to the Board.  He 
recommends that more time be allowed to develop a power point and provide more financial 
information as this was a late developed contract for this meeting.  He stated that Mr. Killian 
has reviewed the contract and found it to be acceptable and Mr. Killian agreed. 
 
Chairman Swanger stated that it has been the Board’s practice with Solid Waste contracts 
to fully inform the public and provide information through power points and discussions. 
 
 



08182014 

 Request approval of proposal from Bunnell-Lammons Engineering, Inc. 
Chairman Swanger recognized County Manager, Ira Dove.  Mr. Dove stated that this is a 
proposal of assessment of corrective measures at the Francis Farm Landfill.  This will  
include the types of work that will be done with additional testing and the work with McGill 
Engineering to prepare the reports for DENR. 
 
Chairman Swanger commented that the testing will be for the wells and ground water at the 
Francis Farm Landfill for DENR and for the migration of methane gas. 
 
Mr. Francis noted that the assessment of corrective measures is actually what the County is 
going to submit to DENR showing the County plan.  He stated that after meetings with 
DENR, they are very satisfied with the plans. He noted that the estimated fee is $53,000.   
 
Commissioner Ensley made a motion to approve the proposal from Bunnell-Lammons 
Engineering, Inc. as presented.  The motion was seconded by Commissioner Upton and 
passed unanimously. 
 
Request approval of application for state aid to public library and permission for 
Chairman to sign. 
 Chairman Swanger recognized Library Director, Sharon Woodrow.  Ms. Woodrow stated 
that this is an application for state aid for the public library. 
 
Commissioner Upton made a motion to approve the application for state aid to the public 
library and permission for the Chairman to sign. The motion was seconded by Vice-
Chairman Kirkpatrick and passed unanimously. 
 
Request reappointment of one (1) member to the Recreation Advisory Board District 
2 and one (1) member to Recreation Advisory Board District 5 
Chairman Swanger recognized Mr. Dove.  Mr. Dove explained that in District 5, there were 
two applications. One applicant was unable to be interviewed at this time, therefore this 
appointment will now be made during the September 15th Board meeting.  The one 
application for District 2 was reviewed by Mr. Dove.  He stated that Michael Kownacki is 
currently serving on the Board. 
 
Vice-Chairman Kirkpatrick made a motion to approve the reappointment of Michael 
Kownacki to the District 2 Recreation Advisory Board and was seconded by Commissioner 
Sorrells.  The motion passed unanimously. 
 
Request reappointment of three (3) members to the Clyde Zoning Board of 
Adjustments ETJ 
Chairman Swanger recognized Mr. Dove. Mr. Dove stated that there were four applicants, 
however only three live within the required ETJ.  He reviewed the applications of Carl 
Jackson, Tom Stamey, and William Osborne, noting that they all currently live within the 
ETJ and currently serve on the Board. 
 
Commissioner Upton made a motion to approve the reappointment of Carl Jackson, Tom 
Stamey and William Osborne to the Clyde Zoning Board of Adjustments ETJ.  The motion 
was seconded by Commissioner Ensley and it passed unanimously. 
 



08182014 

CLOSED SESSION 
Vice-Chairman Kirkpatrick made a motion to enter into Closed Session for  
Attorney/Client Privilege G.S. §143-318.11(a)(3) and  
Personnel - G.S. §143-318.11(a)(6). 
Commissioner Upton seconded and the motion carried unanimously. 
The Board returned from Closed Session.    
                    
ADJOURNMENT 
Chairman Swanger asked if there was any further business. 
  
Commissioner Sorrells made a motion to adjourn the regular Board meeting.  
Commissioner Ensley seconded; the motion carried unanimously. 
 
The time of adjournment was 7:12 p.m.  The DVD is attached by reference to the minutes.  
 
 
 
              
        CLERK      CHAIRMAN 
 
                              
 
 
  
 
 
               
 
  
 



08182014 

                          

                       



08182014 

                                  



08182014 

                                                               

 
 
 
 
 



08182014 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
  
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
  
 



08182014 

 
 
 
 

  



08182014 

  
 

  


